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Fort Buford was constructed amid a semi-arid plains type environment 
on a sparsely vegltated plateau forty feet above the left bank of the Missouri 
River about a mile downstream from what was then the mouth of the Yellow- 
stone River. Constructed during the summer of 1866, the original post con­ 
sisted of log and adobe quarters enclosed within a rough stockade of cotton- 
wood logs, designed to house one company of infantry. Due to constant 
harassment by hostile Sioux Indians during the first winter, the post was 
expanded to accommodate five companies the next year, necessitating the 
construction of a new post which was built on the original site.

Some materials for the new post were obtained from nearby Fort Union, 
a former fur trading post built in 1829 by the American Fur Company and 
operated by various companies until 1864. In addition , a sawmill was put 
into operation to prepare logs for the new stockade which was rectangular, 
with sides 330 yards by 200 yards, standing 12 feet high and enclosing seven 
adobe buildings. In 1871 the stockade was removed, and two sets of officer's 
quarters, a hospital, a guard house, and several storehouses were erected 
outside of the original inclosure followed, the next year, by sixteen more 
sets of officers quarters. Except for the adobe barracks and a stone powder 
magazine, the buildings of the post were one story frame structures. 
Additional buildings included six quartermaster's storehouses, a bakery, 
the adjutants office, a corral and stable area, ice houses, laundresses 
quarters, a saw mill, and a butcher shop. In 1875, a Surgeon General's 
report on Fort Buford was most critical of the hasty and careless manner 
in which the structures at the installation had been erected. When the post 
was closed, on October 1, 1895 Brig. Gen. John R. Brooks reported that 
the buildings at Fort Buford were in a dilapidated condition.

Most of the buildings which comprised Fort Buford were sold at auction 
shortly after the post was abandoned. Since 1924 the site has been preserved 
as a historic site, with 200 acres of the once 30 square mile military Res­ 
ervation currently under the administration of the State Historical Society 
of North Dakota. The only buildings still standing are the stone powder 
magazine and the officers headquarters, which now serves as a museum.
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Fort Buford, established on June 13, 1866, was located near the confluence 
of the Yellowstone and Missouri Rivers, (an area long recognized as a trading 
ground and a point of vital importance in the control of the Northern Great Plains) 
as part of the chain of military posts extending from Fort Leavenworth to the 
Columbia River. With its commanding position over the two major water routes 
into the northwestern plains, it played a major role in the policing of this frontier 
region for the oncoming white settlement.

First commanded by Captain William G. Rankin, 6th United States Infantry, 
Fort Buford was initially designed to accommodate one company of Infantry. 
But during the first year, the post was so constantly harassed by hostile Indians 
that the garrison was increased to five companies the next year. Although the 
fort itself was never subjected to a sustained assult, so frequent were the hostile 
attacks that the post was virtually under seige in its early years. In addition to 
occassional forays against the corrals and out buildings, war parties made raids 
on woodcutting, haying and hunting parties so consistently that it was nearly 
impossible for the men to safely leave without an armed escort. In 1867; a 
rumor circulated the eastern newspapers that the entire garrison had been 
massacred and that Captain Rankin's wife had been tied to a horse by the Indians 
and sent galloping helplessly across the plains. Another account had Captain 
Rankin shooting his wife to prevent her falling into the hands of the Indians. 
Neither report was true.

In addition to struggling for its own survival, Fort Buford initially served 
to police the fur traders who had been illegally trading ammunition and whiskey 
to hostile Indians in the area, and as the point of distrubution for government 
annuities to the various Indian tribes living in the vicinity. But it was during 
the Indian Wars of the late 1870's and the early 1880's that Fort Buford 
experienced its greatest significance as a military installation.

In 1876, the wounded survivors of the Battle of the Little Big Horn were 
carried down the Yellowstone to Fort Buford (where several, too severly injured
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to safely travel further, were placed in the post hospital) and down the Missouri 
'to Bismarck on the steamboat Far West captained by Grant Marsh. Following 
the Custer disaster, the government conducted a relentless campaign against 
the Sioux and Cheyenne in eastern Montana and in Wyoming. As men and 
ordinance were shipped up the Missouri and the Yellowstone to support this 
campaign, Fort Buford became a key supply depot and provided security escorts 
for the logistical support lines passing up the two rivers.

As the hostile Indians surrendered, they were broug;ht first to Fort Buford 
and were then transferred to various agencies or prisons. Following their 
surrender in Montana's Bearpaw Mountains in 1877, Chief Joseph and his Nez 
Perce followers were first held at Fort Buford awaiting transfer to Bismarck 
and thence, eventually/ to the Indian Territory of Oklahoma. During the next 
several years many prominent chiefs came into the Fort Buford "holding place" 
including Gall, Crow King, and Rain-in-the-Face. Then, early in 1881, large 
numbers of Sioux began appearing at the post to surrender until, on July 19, 
the still powerful and proud Sitting Bull arrived with his immediate band of 
followers, numbering 187 men, women and children. Having sought refuge 
in Canada since the dramatic events of 1876, this notable Sioux leader was 
finally convinced to return to the United States and surrender by E. H. Allison, 
an influential scout from Fort Buford. From there Sitting Bull was sent to 
Fort Randall for two years imprisonment, and was later returned to the 
Standing Rock Agency.

Throughout its life, the post was also kept busy with more routine 
activities such as regualr patrol duties and policing the border to prevent 
Indians from Canada crossing into the United States to make raids on 
American reservations; and, keeping those in the United States from crossing 
into Canada. The Northwestern Treaty Commission met with Indian tribesmen 
there in 1866, and in 1874, the Northern Boundary Survey used the post as it's 
headquarters and staging area while surveying the United States- Canadian 
border. When the St. Paul, Minneapolis, and Manitoba (Great Northern) 
Railway was built through the region, Fort Buford provided troops in 1887 to 
guard the construction workers.

As white settlement began to fill the region in the late 1880's and early 
1890 's, the need for the post diminished, and on October 1, 1895, the post

GPO 921-724
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was officially abandoned, the four remaining companies being transferred to Fort 
Assiniboine, Montana.

Following the closing of the post, most of the buildings were sold at public 
auction,and in 1924, Fort Buford was established as a state historic site under 
the administration of the State Historical Society of North Dakota. The only 
surviving structures of the old post, the~ officer's quarters, which has been 
converted into a museum, and the powder magazine, stand in silent tribute to the 
vital role Fort Buford played in the opening of upper Missouri River.
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